
  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  

GAMBLING COMMISSION  
                 “Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”   

         The Heathman Lodge, 7801 NE Greenwood Drive Vancouver, WA 98662  

                               Thursday, May 9, 2019 
Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair.  

Commissioners may take action on business items. 
Administrative Procedures Act Proceedings are identified by an asterisk (*)  

  
PUBLIC MEETING  

9:30 AM 
 

Executive Session  -  Closed to the Public                                                   Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Discuss Pending Criminal Investigations, Tribal Negotiations, and 
Litigation  
Public meeting is expected to begin at 1:30 PM 

1:30 
  
  
  
  

Tab 1 
 
  
  

Call to Order                                                                                                Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Welcome and Introductions   

• Moment of Silence 
Consent Agenda                                                                                                               (Action) 

• Minutes – April 11, 2019  
• New Licenses and Class III Employees*  

 
Class III Employees/Snoqualmie & Cowlitz Tribes*                                                  (Action)
     
Election of Officers                                                                                                          (Action) 

• Chair 
• Vice Chair 

 
Director’s Report David Trujillo, Director 

Tab 2 
 

*Budget Discussion                                                                                                         (Action) 
• 2020 Fiscal Year Budget 

                                                                                 Christopher Stanley, Chief Financial Officer  
Tab 3 

 
RULES UP FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING                                       (Action) 
*Petition for Poker “no limits”                                                                                                       

Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
                                                                                                Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator 

Tab 4 
 

RULES UP FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING                                       (Action) 
*Service Supplier/Distributor License Rules 

Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
                                                                                                 Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator 

Tab 5 RULES UP FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING                                       (Action) 
*Card Shuffler Cellular Network Rules 

Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
                                                                                                  Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator 
 

Tab 6 
 

RULES UP FOR FINAL ACTION                                                                               (Action) 
*Trade Show Rules                                                                                                   

Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 



                                                                                                 Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator 

Tab 7 
 
 
 

*Defaults  (Action)  
• Vincent Johnson, Public Card Room Employee License Revocation 
• Panya Praseuth, Public Card Room Employee License Revocation  
• Marcus Shin, Class III Employee License Revocation 

                                                                          Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
Tab 8 

 
Legislative Wrap Up  
 Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 

 Adjourn  Public Comment 
Meeting Adjourn  

 

Friday, May 10, 2019        
 The Heathman Lodge, 7801 NE Greenwood Drive Vancouver, WA 98662                           

Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair.  
Commissioners may take action on business items. 

Administrative Procedures Act Proceedings are identified by an asterisk (*)  
  

PUBLIC MEETING  
Reconvene 
9:00 AM 

Call to Order                                                                                                Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Welcome Back 

Tab 9 
 

Sports Gambling Discussion 
                                                                        Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 

Adjourn Public Comment 
Meeting Adjourn 

 Commission may use this time for any Thursday agenda items that did not get covered. 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3473.  

Please silence your cell phones for the public meeting 

 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

 
April Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 

Great Wolf Lodge 
20500 Old Highway 99 SW Centralia, WA 98531   

Public Meeting  
April 11, 2019 

 
Commissioners Present:                                      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair  
Chris Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
 

 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Executive Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; Christopher Stanley, Chief 
Financial Officer; Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager; Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison; 
Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant; and Suzanne 
Becker, Assistant Attorney General.  
 
Public Meeting Call to Order 
Chair Bud Sizemore called the Gambling Commission meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. He 
announced that the commissioners would be going into executive session and that the estimated 
time for the public meeting to start was 1:00 p.m. In executive session, the commissioners 
discussed litigation, pending criminal investigations and tribal negotiations.  
 
At 1:06 p.m., Chair Sizemore welcomed everyone to the Great Wolf Lodge. He announced that 
he will be attending Behind the Badge Foundation’s Law Enforcement Memorial Ball. Behind 
the Badge represents families and helps them to navigate through a line of duty death within the 
law enforcement community. He asked for a moment of silence to recognize law enforcement 
officers across the country and in this state who were lost in the line of duty since we last met.  
 
There were 12 people in attendance.    
 
Tab 1 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the consent agenda as presented by staff.  
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion. 
The motion was passed 5:0 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the Cowlitz and Snoqualmie license as presented 
by staff.  
Commissioner Levy seconded the motion. 
The motion was passed 4:0 



2 
 

Commissioner Stearns abstained from the vote.  
 
Director’s Report   

Director Trujillo gave a brief update on the agency move. He also announced that staff has 
provided Numerica Credit Union with a raffle license. He reported that he attended the 
Washington Indian Gaming Association meeting with Tribal Liaison Julie Lies. He also 
reminded commissioners and staff that with the 2019 legislative session coming to a close, some 
media outlets may be reaching out for comment. He asked that all media calls and inquiries be 
referred to Public Information Officer Heather Songer. Chair Sizemore seconded the request.   
 
Presentations by Commissioner Chris Stearns  
Commissioner Stearns reported that he recently attended the ICE London and National Indian 
Gaming Association conferences. He shared what he learned as an attendee, and as a moderator 
for panels on sports betting and social gaming. 
 
Tab 2 
Administrative Procedures Act Refresher 
Assistant Attorney General Suzanne Becker presented a refresher course of the 
Administrative Procedures Act for the commissioners. The presentation included rulemaking and 
adjudication procedures established in the Administrative Procedures Act.  
 
Tab 3 
Defaults  
Legal and Legislative Manager (LLM) Brian Considine presented the material for this tab.  
 
Kim Hue T. Mai, public card room employee license revocation.  Commissioners voted 
unanimously to revoke Ms. Mai’s public card room employee license for her role in a money 
laundering and loan sharking operation last year at Macau Casino in Tukwila. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked if Ms. Kim Hue T. Mai was in the audience. She was not.  
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to revoke the public card room employee license as presented 
by staff.  
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously. 5:0 
 
David L. Terry, public card room employee license revocation. Commissioners voted 
unanimously to revoke Mr. Terry’s public card room employee license for charges against him 
while he was working as a dealer in Moses Lake.  
 
Chair Sizemore asked if Mr. David L. Terry was in the audience. He was not.  
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to revoke the public card room employee license as presented by 
staff.  
Commissioner Levy seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously. 5:0 
 



3 
 

 
Tab 4 
2020 Supplemental Budget Request Presentation 
Chief Financial Officer Christopher Stanley (CFO Stanley) presented the material for this 
tab. CFO Stanley provided budget information and asked commissioners to start thinking about 
their priorities for 2020 so that we can work on our 2020 supplemental budget requests. 
Commissioners thanked CFO Stanley for his work and did not have any comments or questions 
at this time.  
 
Tab 5 
Legislative Update 
LLM Considine presented the materials for this tab.  He spoke about the self-exclusion bill 
(SHB1302). He provided a briefing on the problem gambling task force bill (ESHB1880). He 
also spoke about the animal fighting/abuse bill (HB1919) that passed in the Senate. The amended 
bill will go back to the House for a vote. LLM Considine said that all sports betting bills are 
dead. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked for public comment. Dolores A. Chiechi, from Recreational Gaming 
Association (RGA) addressed the commissioners. Ms. Chiechi said, “Commissioner Stearns, I 
appreciate your concern about the 1% increase that potentially could be part of the final midnight 
hour behind closed doors negotiations, it is to the card rooms, the Bingos that are over 50000 and 
Pull Tab Operators so I implore you to take a look at that as you build your budget going forward 
you can consider that there will be fewer licensees going forward”. She reminded the 
commissioners that another card room closed in Woodland and that RGA expects a second one 
to close, which is under the same ownership. Ms. Chiechi also stated, “House Bill 1880, which is 
the task force that was amended in the committee. It includes a number of amendments that 
became a striker and one of those amendments will allow all 29 tribes to have a representative on 
the task force.”  She said that it's unclear as to who will choose the participants of the task force.  
 
Commissioner Stearns thanked staff for all their hard work on the hill this legislative session.  
  
Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comment 

Chair Sizemore thanked everyone for attending the meeting and announced that the next 
meeting will be at the Heathman Lodge in Vancouver on May 9-10. Contact Julie Anderson for 
information regarding travel or hotel reservations.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 2:45 p.m. 



















































Budget: FY 2020
May 9, 2019
Christopher Stanley
Chief Financial Officer



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2

FY 2019 is ending well

Revenues have out-performed expectations by over 8 percent, primarily due to 
the 30-percent over-performance of punchboard/pull-tab revenues.

Total Revenue by Category 
2019 Expected 

Revenue 
2019 Actual 

Revenue 
2019 Projected 

Remaining 
2019 Revenue 

Variance 

Activity Licenses - Commercial $         2,643,280 $         2,170,245 $         1,003,673 $            530,638 

Activity Licenses - Non-Profit $            477,898 $            378,702 $            197,846 $               98,650 

Individual Licenses $         1,065,445 $            881,504 $            273,865 $               89,924 

Vendor Licenses $            304,941 $            233,969 $               87,204 $               16,232 

Tribal-Related Activities $         6,089,577 $         4,582,916 $         1,686,350 $            179,689 

Other Sources $            524,583 $            403,108 $            131,147 $                 9,672 

Agency Total $       11,105,724 $         8,650,444 $         3,380,085 $            924,805 

FY 2019 Revenue by Category/Subsource



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3

FY 2019 is ending well

Agency Total by Object 
2019 Total 
Budgeted 2019 Spent To-Date 

2019 Projected 
Remaining 

2019 Variance
(Bd-Sp-Pr=Var) 

FTEs 114.00 76.57 28.50 8.93 

Salaries $    7,891,691 $    5,658,370 $        1,996,795 $           236,526 

Benefits $    2,834,564 $    2,085,412 $            713,635 $             35,517 

Contracts $         20,000 $         19,075 $                      - $                   925 

Goods & Services $    2,588,131 $    1,859,254 $            619,341 $           109,536 

Travel $       330,660 $       207,307 $              80,913 $             42,440 

Capital Expenses $       662,856 $       640,823 $              69,463 $            (47,430)

Grants & Benefits $           8,100 $            3,700 $                1,625 $               2,775 

Agency Total $  14,336,002 $  10,473,940 $        3,481,772 $           380,290 

FY 2019 Agency / Object-Level View

The agency has underspent its budget for FY 2019 by 2.6% due to standard vacancy savings.



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

FY 2020 budget for adoption
PROGRAM INDEX SUMMARY FY 2020 FY 2021 BI 2019-21

FTE Total: 119.25 119.25 119.25
Appropriations Total: $17,132,382 $16,816,187 $33,948,569 

Object Object Title
A Salaries and Wages $9,392,744 $9,674,527 $19,067,271
B Employee Benefits $3,337,829 $3,326,629 $6,664,458 
C Professional Service Contracts $1,024,494 $500,494 $1,524,988
E Goods and Services $2,543,334 $2,529,556 $5,072,890
G Travel $303,511 $303,511 $607,022
J Capital Outlay-Equipment $527,770 $478,770 $1,006,540
N Grants, Benefits & Client Services Contracts 2,700 2,700 5,400 

Objects Total: $17,132,382 $16,816,187 $33,948,569

Statewide cost of living increases and certain job class reallocations are causing unanticipated growth in agency 
salaries and benefits. An increase in government service agency rates is also causing growth in the agency budget.



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

What does this mean 
for the future?
Four balance sheet scenarios to consider



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

Scenario 1: 114 FTES in FY20+

Actual Proposed Proposed Proposed
FY18 FY19 Biennium Total FY20 FY21 Biennium Total

Beginning WCB = 8,400,091 9,284,165 7,358,982 3,702,639
Revenue = 14,094,519 12,030,529 26,125,048 13,476,040 13,494,371 26,970,411
884 Expenditures *= 13,210,445 13,955,712 27,166,157 17,132,382 16,816,187 33,948,569

Revenue minus Expenditures = (1,925,184) (3,656,342) (3,321,816) (6,978,158)
WCB at FY end = 9,284,165 7,358,982 3,702,639 380,823
FTEs = 103.2 105.1 114.0 114.0

WCB Target (2 months Exp.) = $2,325,952 $2,855,397 $2,802,698

Other Funds: End of FY18 Bal. Spent FY19 End of FY19 Bal. Budgeted FY20 Budgeted FY21 End of FY21 Bal.
Federal Seizure (141) $76,000 $31,402 $84,676 $0 $0 $84,676
State Seizures (226) $528,000 $0 $579,108 $0 $0 $528,000
Industrial Ins Prem Ref (03K) $189,000 $0 $259,063 $0 $0 $114,000

Gambling Revolving Account (884-6)
Projected Balance Sheet – 17-19 and 19-21 Biennium – 114 FTEs

• Expenditures in other accounts are not included. High-level balances are below.
• Expenditures in FY20 and FY21 assumed yearly 3% COLAs



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 7

Scenario 2: 120 FTEs in FY20; 123 in FY21

Actual Proposed Proposed Proposed
FY18 FY19 Biennium Total FY20 FY21 Biennium Total

Beginning WCB = 8,400,091 9,284,165 7,358,982 2,982,639
Revenue = 14,094,519 12,030,529 26,125,048 13,476,040 13,494,371 26,970,411
884 Expenditures *= 13,210,445 13,955,712 27,166,157 17,852,382 17,896,187 35,748,569

Revenue minus Expenditures = (1,925,184) (4,376,342) (4,401,816) (8,788,158)
WCB at FY end = 9,284,165 7,358,982 2,982,639 (1,419,177)
FTEs = 103.2 105.1 120.0 123.0

WCB Target (2 months Exp.) = $2,325,952 $2,975,397 $2,982,698

Other Funds: End of FY18 Bal. Spent FY19 End of FY19 Bal. Budgeted FY20 Budgeted FY21 End of FY21 Bal.
Federal Seizure (141) $76,000 $31,402 $84,676 $0 $0 $84,676
State Seizures (226) $528,000 $0 $579,108 $0 $0 $579,108
Industrial Ins Prem Ref (03K) $189,000 $0 $259,063 $0 $0 $259,063

Gambling Revolving Account (884-6)
Projected Balance Sheet – 17-19 and 19-21 Biennium – FY20 = 120 FTEs & FY21 = 123 FTEs

• Expenditures in other accounts are not included. High-level balances are below.
• Expenditures in FY20 and FY21 assumed yearly 3% COLAs
• Expenditures include actual projections plus 6.0 additional FTEs in FY20 and 9.0 additional FTEs in FY21 at $120,000 per FTE



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 8

Scenario 3: 123 FTEs in FY20+

Actual Proposed Proposed Proposed
FY18 FY19 Biennium Total FY20 FY21 Biennium Total

Beginning WCB = 8,400,091 9,284,165 7,358,982 2,622,639
Revenue = 14,094,519 12,030,529 26,125,048 13,476,040 13,494,371 26,970,411
884 Expenditures *= 13,210,445 13,955,712 27,166,157 18,212,382 17,896,187 36,108,569

Revenue minus Expenditures = (1,925,184) (4,736,342) (4,401,816) (9,138,158)
WCB at FY end = 9,284,165 7,358,982 2,622,639 (1,779,177)
FTEs = 103.2 105.1 123.0 123.0

WCB Target (2 months Exp.) = $2,325,952 $3,035,397 $2,982,698

Other Funds: End of FY18 Bal. Spent FY19 End of FY19 Bal. Budgeted FY20 Budgeted FY21 End of FY21 Bal.
Federal Seizure (141) $76,000 $31,402 $44,598 $0 $0 $44,598
State Seizures (226) $528,000 $0 $528,000 $0 $0 $528,000
Industrial Ins Prem Ref (03K) $189,000 $0 $189,000 $0 $0 $189,000

Gambling Revolving Account (884-6)
Projected Balance Sheet – 17-19 and 19-21 Biennium – 123 FTEs

• Expenditures in other accounts are not included. High-level balances are below.
• Expenditures in FY20 and FY21 assumed yearly 3% COLAs
• Expenditures include actual projections plus 9.0 additional FTEs per year at $120,000 per FTE



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 9

Gambling Revolving Account (884-6)
Projected Balance Sheet – 17-19 and 19-21 Biennium – 119.25 FTEs

• Expenditures in other accounts are not included. High-level balances are below.
• Expenditures in FY20 and FY21 assumed yearly 3% COLAs

Actual Proposed Proposed Proposed
FY18 FY19 Biennium Total FY20 FY21 Biennium Total

Beginning WCB = 8,400,091 9,284,165 7,358,982 5,216,442
Revenue = 14,094,519 12,030,529 26,125,048 14,149,842 14,169,090 28,318,932
884 Expenditures *= 13,210,445 13,955,712 27,166,157 16,292,382 15,976,187 32,268,569

Revenue minus Expenditures = (1,925,184) (2,142,540) (1,807,097) (3,949,637)
WCB at FY end = 9,284,165 7,358,982 5,216,442 3,409,344
FTEs = 103.2 105.1 119.25 119.25

WCB Target (4 months Exp.) = $4,651,904 $5,430,794 $5,325,396

Other Funds: End of FY18 Bal. Spent FY19 End of FY19 Bal. Budgeted FY20 Budgeted FY21 End of FY21 Bal.
Federal Seizure (141) $76,000 $31,402 $84,676 $0 $0 $84,676
State Seizures (226) $528,000 $0 $579,108 $0 $0 $528,000
Industrial Ins Prem Ref (03K) $189,000 $0 $259,063 $0 $0 $114,000

This scenario assumes 119.25 
budgeted FTEs and the historical 
vacancy rate of a minimum of 7.0 
FTEs/month. 

The WCB Target is updated to reflect 
four months of expenditures instead 
of two, which recognizes the volatility 
of recreational fee-based revenue.

What’s Likely: Modified Scenario 1



Questions?
Christopher Stanley
Chief Financial Officer



Tab 3: MAY, 2019 Commission Meeting Agenda.        Statutory Authority 9.46.070 
Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Alexander Olson, Tukwila, Washington 

Petition for Rule-making 

Mr. Olson petitions for a rule change to remove wagering limits for poker. Mr. Olson feels that this change 
is needed because the wagering limits are arbitrary in nature, a hindrance to participation, and lack of 
benefit to any participating party or governing body make it obsolete. Additionally, he feels that wagering 
limits discourage professional poker players from living, playing, and paying taxes in Washington state. 
The current rule prevents all “no-limit” variants of poker, which, in Mr. Olson’s opinion, is the most 
commonly sought after variants of poker by professional and amateur players. Mr. Olson feels that 
removing wagering limits on poker will attract more professional and amateur poker players to the state 
and increase overall casino attendance. 
Attachments: 

• Petition
• WAC 230-15-135
• Stakeholder Feedback

Background and Policy Considerations 

Maximum single wager limits have increased over time, as reflected in the table below. 

Maximum Amount of a Single Wager 
Card room Class F Endorsed House-Banked 

Prior to 2008 $25 $25 $25 
January 1, 2008 $40 $40 $40 
January 1, 2013 $40 $40  

$100 for Texas Hold’Em 
$40 

$100 for Texas Hold’Em 
September 26, 2016 $40 $100 $300 
December 23, 2016 $40 $300 $300 

The Commission last reviewed this rule in 2016 when it accepted rule petitions from card room owners 
George Teeny and Teresa Malphrus. The Commission then amended the rule, raising the wager limit for 
Class F and house-banked card room licensees from $100 to $300 for a single wager. This change went 
into effect on December 23, 2016. 
This proposed change would impact all Class F and house-banked card room licensees. As of April, 2019, 
there is 1 Class F licensee and 46 house-banked card room licensees.  

Stakeholder Outreach and Feedback 
Attachments: 

• Galen Cobbs – opposed to removing wager limits
• Grant Udlock – in support of raising wager limits to $1,000

Rule Petition to Amend   
WAC 230-15-135 – Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 

March, 2019 – Petition to Initiate Rule-Making 



Staff Recommendation 

Under the requirements of the Administrative Procedure Act, the Commission must take action on a 
petition within 60 days of receiving it. Your options are: 

1) Initiate rule-making proceedings by filing the rule as proposed for further discussion; or 
2) Deny the petition in writing, a) stating the reasons for the denial and specifically address the 

concerns stated in the petition, or b) where appropriate, indicate alternative means by which the 
agency will address the concerns raised in the petition. 

Staff recommends denial of the petition. All Washington authorized gambling activities are limited in 
nature and scope by RCW 9.46.010 and therefore have wagering limits. 

 

  



PETITION FOR RULE CHANGE 

Rule Petition Type: Amend Rule – I am requesting WSGC to change an existing rule. 
==Amend Rule – I am requesting WSGC to change an existing rule. == 
List rule number (WAC) if known: 230-15-135 
I am requesting the following change: Removal of section (1) “Poker” from rule number 230-15-135, thereby 
removing the arbitrary limits on number of betting rounds and $40 or $300 limit wagers made at poker games. 
This change is needed because: Its arbitrary nature, hindrance to participation, and lack of benefit to any 
participating party or governing body make it obsolete. It discourages professional poker players from living, 
playing, and paying taxes in Washington State. It completely prevents all “no-limit” variants of poker, which 
are by far the most commonly sought after and played variants by professionals and amateurs alike. 
The effect of this rule change will be: Increased population of taxpaying professional poker players. Increased 
overall casino attendance due to increased popularity of “no-limit” poker variants. 
 

 



Proposed Rule Amendment 

WAC (4/23/2019 01:47 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 

WAC 230-15-135  Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card 

games.  Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering 

limits: 

 (1) Poker - 

(a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any 

one game; and 

(b) There must be no more than four wagers in any betting 

round, for example, the initial wager plus three raises; and 

(c) The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed 

forty dollars; however, Class F and house-banked card game 

licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed three hundred 

dollars; 

(12) Games based on achieving a specific number of 

points - Each point must not exceed five cents in value; 

(23) Ante - No more than the maximum wager allowed for the 

first betting round for any game, except for Panguingue (Pan). 

The ante may, by house rule: 

(a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may 

not exceed the maximum wager allowed for the first betting 

round; and 



Proposed Rule Amendment 

WAC (4/23/2019 01:47 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 

(b) Be used as part of a player's wager; 

(34) Panguingue (Pan) - The maximum value of a chip must 

not exceed ten dollars. An ante must not exceed one chip. We 

prohibit doubling of conditions. Players going out may collect 

no more than two additional chips for going out from each 

participating player. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 18-05-029, § 230-15-135, 

filed 2/9/18, effective 7/1/18. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070 and 9.46.0201. WSR 16-23-153, § 230-15-135, filed 

11/22/16, effective 12/23/16; WSR 16-18-024, § 230-15-135, filed 

8/26/16, effective 9/26/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 

and 9.46.0282. WSR 12-21-048 (Order 680), § 230-15-135, filed 

10/12/12, effective 1/1/13; WSR 09-21-013 (Order 658), § 230-15-

135, filed 10/9/09, effective 11/9/09. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070. WSR 09-09-056 (Order 642), § 230-15-135, filed 

4/10/09, effective 7/1/09; WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-15-

135, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 07-09-033 (Order 

608), § 230-15-135, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] 



From: Galen Cobbs
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB)
Subject: Re: Washington State Gambling Commission - Notice of Rule Petition
Date: Wednesday, May 1, 2019 9:33:54 AM

Good morning Ashlie,
We would like to amend our previous response to the rule change.

We are not in favor of this rule change. We do not want to cater to professional gamblers. As a
small card room we cater to recreational players who like to play poker as a hobby.

Thank you for your consideration.

On Wed, Apr 3, 2019 at 10:15 AM Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) <ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov>
wrote:

Good morning,

This email is to inform you that the Washington State Gambling Commission has received
the attached petition for rule making. RCW 34.05.330 is the law that governs these types of
petitions and it requires that an agency hear a petition within 60 days of receipt of the
petition. This petition will be heard by the Commission at the May 9th & 10th Commission
meeting in Vancouver, Washington.

If you would like to comment on this petition, you can do so by responding to me directly or
by submitting a public comment through our website here.

Feel free to contact me if you have any questions.

Ashlie Laydon

Rules Coordinator

Legal and Records Division

Washington State Gambling Commission

mailto:gcslopitch@gmail.com
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=34.05.330
https://wsgc.wa.gov/news/request-public-comment?_ga=2.39200419.1842042903.1554159290-463894118.1534802297


From: Grant Udlock
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB)
Cc: Michael Mazeckin
Subject: Re: Washington State Gambling Commission - Notice of Rule Petition
Date: Thursday, April 4, 2019 3:23:13 PM

I've been working and playing in Washington poker rooms for over 20 years. I understand the
petition from a poker player point of view and I do believe the betting cap should be raised in our
state.
I don't think allowing a true no limit would serve the best interest of the smaller casinos or the
average player recreational player.
All players should know their limit, but I think we all know that most don't and therefore would
still play in games that are structured above their means.
I know this petition was setup as an all our nothing structure but I would suggest raising the
betting limit to $1,000, this would still give the professional poker player enough of an advantage
so their skill would prevail in the long run.
My main concern is the average player who thinks they're good enough to sit at these tables and
by the time they realize they're not it becomes life changing monies they have lost.
Washington state has grown up and become a legitimate place for poker and therefore the limits
should reflect that, but in my opinion still within limits to protect the average player, while at the
same time offering a very legitimate game.
Thanks for your time in reading my response, any questions please let me know.
Regards,

Grant

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) 

Sent: Thursday, April 4, 2019 3:09 PM

To: Grant Udlock

Subject: RE: Washington State Gambling Commission - Notice of Rule Petition

Grant,

I believe maybe this was sent to me before you were finished writing it?

From: Grant Udlock 

Sent: Thursday, April 4, 2019 2:57 PM

To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) 

Subject: Re: Washington State Gambling Commission - Notice of Rule Petition

Ashlie,

Have an

mailto:grant@casinocaribbean.net
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:mmazeckin@casinocaribbean.net
https://aka.ms/o0ukef


Get Outlook for iOS

From: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) <ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2019 10:18 AM

Cc: Considine, Brian (GMB); Griffin, Tina (GMB); Rancour, Michelle (GMB); Lies, Julie (GMB)

Subject: Washington State Gambling Commission - Notice of Rule Petition

Good morning,

This email is to inform you that the Washington State Gambling Commission has received the attached

petition for rule making. RCW 34.05.330 is the law that governs these types of petitions and it requires

that an agency hear a petition within 60 days of receipt of the petition. This petition will be heard by

the Commission at the May 9th & 10th Commission meeting in Vancouver, Washington.

If you would like to comment on this petition, you can do so by responding to me directly or by

submitting a public comment through our website here.

Feel free to contact me if you have any questions.

Ashlie Laydon

Rules Coordinator

Legal and Records Division

Washington State Gambling Commission

(360) 486-3473

ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov

https://aka.ms/o0ukef
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=34.05.330
https://wsgc.wa.gov/news/request-public-comment?_ga=2.39200419.1842042903.1554159290-463894118.1534802297
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov


Tab 4: MAY, 2019 Commission Meeting Agenda.        Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Wendy Winsor, W.O.W. Distributing, Mukilteo, Washington 

Background and Policy Considerations 

Bold = Changes made after the October 2018 Commission Meeting. 
W.O.W. Distributing originally requested the repeal of WAC 230-03-225, which prohibits licensed 
manufacturers or distributors of punch boards/pull-tabs from also being a licensed gambling service supplier, 
so that it could charge a fee for training and assistance it is already providing to new and existing customers. 
A service supplier license is required to carry out these activities for compensation. Staff opposed the repeal 
and the Commission accepted the petition in October 2018 and entered into rule-making to amend current 
rules to allow W.O.W. to carry out these activities without a repeal of any rule.   

Commission staff conducted stakeholder outreach, including in-person or telephonic meetings, to 
discuss changes to our service supplier rules. Staff and stakeholders who participated in the meetings 
agreed that it was best to amend our current distributor rules and service supplier rule, to achieve the 
petitioner’s request to provide training and assistance to new and current customers for a fee. 
Attachments: 

• Petition
• WAC 230-03-210
• WAC 230-03-190

Stakeholder Feedback and Outreach 

Stakeholder meeting was convened on January 17, 2019 and February 22, 2019. Stakeholders are 
supportive of petitioner’s wishes to provide education, training, and assistance with licensing for 
new and existing punch boards and pull-tab licensees, but are resistant to repealing or amending 
WAC 230-03-225 as it protects the integrity of punchboards and pull-tabs. Stakeholders have agreed 
on the proposed changes to WAC 230-03-210 and WAC 230-03-190 in order for the petitioner to 
achieve this. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends filing the proposed language for further discussion. 

Rule Petition to Amend   
WAC 230-03-210- Applying for a gambling service supplier license. 

WAC 230-03-190- Applying for a distributor license. 

May, 2019 – Discussion and Possible Filing 
October, 2018 – Petition to Initiate Rule-Making 





WAC (4/19/2019 11:51 AM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 

WAC 230-03-210  Applying for a gambling service supplier 

license.  (1) You must apply for a gambling service supplier 

license if you perform any of the following gambling-related 

services for compensation: 

(a) Consulting or advisory services regarding gambling 

activities; or 

(b) Gambling management services; or 

(c) Financing for more than one licensee for purchases or 

leases of gambling equipment or financing for providing 

infrastructure or facilities, or equipment that supports 

gambling operations: 

(i) Once you have financed more than one licensee, you must 

be a licensed gambling service supplier until all loans with 

licensees or previous licensees are paid. 

(ii) Once you have been a licensed gambling service 

supplier, you must be licensed as a gambling service supplier 

again before financing purchases or leases for any licensee; or 

(d) Acting as a lending agent, or loan servicer, or 

placement agent; or 



WAC (4/19/2019 11:51 AM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 

(e) Providing the assembly of components for gambling 

equipment under a contract with a licensed manufacturer or 

entering into an ongoing financial arrangement for gambling 

related software with a licensed manufacturer; or 

(f) Installing, integrating, maintaining, or servicing 

digital surveillance systems that allow direct access to the 

operating system; or 

(g) Training individuals to conduct authorized gambling 

activities; or 

(h) Providing any other service or activity where influence 

may be exerted over any gambling activity licensed by the 

commission; or 

(i) Performing the testing and certification of tribal 

lottery systems in meeting requirements specified in the tribal-

state compact; or 

(j) Providing nonmanagement-related recordkeeping or 

storage services for punch board and pull-tab operators, when 

the combined total gross billings from such services exceed 

thirty thousand dollars during any permit period or license 

year. 



WAC (4/19/2019 11:51 AM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 

(2) You do not need a gambling service supplier license if 

you are: 

(a) A bank, mutual savings bank, or credit union regulated 

by the department of financial institutions or any federally 

regulated commercial lending institution; or 

(b) A university or college regulated by the Washington 

state board of community and technical colleges and the higher 

education coordinating board that trains individuals to conduct 

authorized gambling activities; or 

(c) An attorney, accountant, or governmental affairs 

consultant whose primary business is providing professional 

services that are unrelated to the management or operation of 

gambling activities; or 

(d) A person who only provides nonmanagement-related 

recordkeeping or storage services for punch board and pull-tab 

operators, when the combined total gross billings from such 

services do not exceed thirty thousand dollars during any permit 

period; or 

(e) A person who provides names, images, artwork or 

associated copyrights, or trademarks, or patent use, or other 



WAC (4/19/2019 11:51 AM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 

features that do not affect the results or outcome of the game, 

for use in gambling equipment; or 

(f) Regulated lending institutions; or 

(g) A licensed distributor who provides any of the 

following services for compensation: 

(i) Training to licensed and potential punch board/pull-tab 

operators; or 

(ii) Providing assistance to gambling license applicants or 

licensees seeking gambling license renewal for compensation.. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 10-19-052 (Order 673), § 

230-03-210, filed 9/14/10, effective 1/1/11; WSR 07-21-116 

(Order 617), § 230-03-210, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 

06-24-030 (Order 605), § 230-03-210, filed 11/29/06, effective 

1/1/08; WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-210, filed 3/22/06, 

effective 1/1/08.] 



WAC (4/18/2019 04:33 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 

WAC 230-03-190  Applying for a distributor license.  You 

must apply for a distributor license if you: 

(1) Buy or otherwise obtain a finished piece of gambling 

equipment for use in authorized gambling activities from another 

person and sell or provide that gambling equipment to a third 

person for resale, display, or use; or 

(2) Are a manufacturer who sells or provides gambling 

equipment you do not make to any other person for resale, 

display, or use; or 

(3) Service and repair authorized gambling equipment. 

However, distributors must not add, modify, or alter the 

gambling equipment; or 

(4) Modify gambling equipment using materials provided by 

manufacturers to upgrade equipment to current technology; or. 

(5) Buy or lease a group 12 amusement game from another 

licensee and sell or lease the group 12 amusement game to an 

amusement game licensee; or. 

(6) Provide training to licensed and potential punch 

board/pull-tab operators for compensation; or 



WAC (4/18/2019 04:33 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 

(7) Provide assistance to gambling license applicants or 

licensees seeking gambling license renewal for compensation. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 18-05-026, § 230-03-190, 

filed 2/9/18, effective 5/1/18. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-19-015, § 230-03-190, filed 9/8/16, 

effective 10/9/16; WSR 16-08-033 (Order 718), § 230-03-190, 

filed 3/30/16, effective 4/30/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-190, filed 

3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] 

WAC 230-03-220  Marketing level restrictions for punch 

board or pull-tab manufacturers, distributors, or operators.  

(1) The different marketing levels for punch board and pull-tabs 

are: 

(a) Operator; and 

(b) Distributor or manufacturer. 

(2) If you are a manufacturer or distributor, or spouse of 

a manufacturer or distributor of punch boards, pull-tabs, pull-

tab dispensing devices, or related equipment, you must not have 

a substantial interest in a business that operates punch boards 

or pull-tabs. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 

230-03-220, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tab 5: MAY, 2019 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                     Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Bo Zarach, Bally Technologies/Scientific Games, Las Vegas, Nevada 

Background and Policy Considerations 

Bold = Changes made after February 2019 Commission Meeting. 
Bally Technologies/Scientific Games requested WAC 230-16-151 be amended allowing card shufflers to be 
connected to a secure cellular network for billing purposes only. Currently, gambling equipment can only 
be connected to external tools for standard maintenance through a closed network. 
This change would allow licensed manufacturers to have a new billing option for card shufflers found in 
licensed card rooms.  Bally Technologies/Scientific Games states that this change will allow it to only bill 
for the shuffler when it is in use. It states that this change may save on costs for card rooms because a card 
room would be charged only for the amount of successful shuffles rather than paying a standard set price 
for the use of the shuffler. Card shuffling devices connecting to a secure cellular network have already 
been tested by the Electronic Gaming Lab and approved for use in tribal facilities.  
The current proposed rules address card shufflers, billing information, and cellular networks based on the 
petition request received in February. Stakeholder feedback received by staff indicates that some 
stakeholders may be interested in broadening the scope of this rule language once the current rule-making 
is finalized. Staff will discuss additional proposals with stakeholders once this rule is finalized and bring 
those proposals to the Commissioners for review later this year, if needed. 
Attachments: 

• Letter from Bo Zarach, Bally Technologies/Scientific Games 
• Petition 
• Shuffler Flex Cellular System Overview 
• Draft language 

Stakeholder Outreach and Feedback 

Stakeholder meetings were convened on March 20, 2019 and April 26, 2019. We discussed adopting 
a new rule that allows card shuffling devices to connect to a secure cellular network for billing 
purposes instead of amending WAC 230-16-151. We also discussed other types of gambling 
equipment, connecting to other types of secure networks, and connecting for purposes other than 
billing, such as diagnostic purposes. These concerns are outside the scope of this petition but can be 
addressed in the future. On April 26, 2019, stakeholders agreed to move forward with language to 
allow for card shuffling devices to connect to secure cellular network for billing purposes only and 
to address other concerns at a later date. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends filing for further discussion. 

 
Rule Petition to Amend   

WAC 230-16-151 Gambling equipment connecting to external tools for 
standard maintenance. 

 
May, 2019 – Discussion 

February, 2019 – Rule-making Filed 

















NEW 

WAC 230-16-152 

Card shuffling devices connecting to a secure cellular network for billing purposes. 

Card shuffling devices can be connected to a secure cellular network for billing purposes.  
(1) For the purposes of this rule: 

(a) A secure cellular network includes the card shuffling device and a cellular modem that is 
used to transmit information via a secure cellular network.  

(b) Billing purposes means transmitting historical shuffler data that is used when billing is 
based on the number of successful shuffles. Shuffler data includes: 

(i) Equipment statistics such as software versions, serial numbers, network information, 
hard count meters, and shuffler configuration information; and 

(ii) Usage information such as hard count meters, successful and unsuccessful shuffles, 
shuffles completed by service, number of card sorts, and the number of cards in each 
shuffle; and 

(iii) History logs such as shuffler malfunctions, card recognition errors, and maintenance 
logs; and 

(iv) Test messages used for setup. 
(2) The following requirements apply when connecting card shuffling devices to a secure cellular 
network for billing purposes: 

(a) An identical or substantially similar card shuffling device connected to a secure cellular 
network must be tested and approved by us, as outlined in WAC 230-06-050, before it can be 
used; and 

(b) The transmitted data must not include card specific information, live gaming data, or any 
other gambling information; and  

(c) Except for a confirmation notification from the network that the shuffler data was 
successfully received, there may only be one-way communication from the card shuffling device 
to the secure cellular network; and 

(d) Transmitted information may only be accessed by the licensee or  licensed manufacturer; 
and 

(e) A record must be kept of all information transmitted and made available to us upon 
request.  



Tab 6  MAY, 2019 Commission Meeting Agenda.          Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission Staff 

Background and Policy Considerations 

Bold = Changes from March 2019 Commission Meeting. 
WAC 230-12-337, now WAC 230-16-005, was adopted and became effective in July, 2006, allowing 
licensed manufacturers and distributors to transport, display, and take orders for authorized gambling 
equipment at trade shows and conventions. 
In 2018, there was a request to transport and display unapproved tribal lottery system machines at a 
Washington Indian Gaming Association trade show. Staff denied the request because the machines had not 
been tested in and approved by the Electronic Gaming Lab. Commissioners approved to initiate rule 
making at the January 2019 Commission meeting to clarify what devices can be displayed at trade shows. 
At our February Commission Meeting, two areas were identified where staff believes clarification is 
needed: 

- Can devices that have not been approved by Washington State Gambling Commission but would
be used for authorized gambling activities be displayed at trade shows?

- Can devices used for unauthorized activities be displayed at trade shows?

WAC 230-16-005, transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment at trade shows, is amended to 
clarify what gambling equipment can be displayed at a trade show and WAC 230-06-050, review of 
electronic and mechanical gambling equipment, is amended to ensure the language is consistent with the 
changes made to WAC 230-16-005. 

Stakeholder Outreach and Feedback 

A stakeholder meeting was convened on January 24, 2019 to discuss the timeline and potential language 
for clarifying WAC 230-16-005 and WAC 230-06-050 in time for the WIGA trade show.  

Paul Dasaro, Executive Director of Cowlitz Tribal Gaming Agency, testified at March 2019 
Commission meeting with concerns regarding Class II gambling equipment being subject to on-site 
inspection. The proposed language uses “gambling equipment” which is defined in WAC 230-03-200 
and does not include Class II gambling equipment. Therefore, Class II gambling equipment is not 
subject to on-site inspection under the proposed language. 
Attachments: 

• Email from Marcus Prater, AGEM
• Letter from Steve Bolz, Suquamish Tribal Gaming Commission

Rule Petition to Amend  
WAC 230-16-005 – Transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment 

at trade shows and conventions. 
WAC 230-06-050 – Review of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment. 

May, 2019 – Final Action 
March, 2019 – Discussion and Possible Filing 

February, 2019 – Discussion 
January, 2019 – Initial Rule-making Approved 



• Email from Lance Ledford, Tulalip Gaming Agency  

Staff Recommendation 
Final Action.  
Effective Date 

31 days after filing with the Code Reviser’s Office – expected to be on or about June 10, 2019. 

 



From: Marcus Prater
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB)
Subject: RE: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
Date: Sunday, December 30, 2018 2:03:27 PM

The Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM) would like to submit the following
as part of the public comment process:
 
“The Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM), which represents all of the leading
slot machine and table game companies in the world and has 166 member companies from 22
countries, respectfully asks the Washington State Gambling Commission to update its rules to allow
suppliers to exhibit products in Washington that have not received final lab approvals. Trade show
environments in particular should allow for the latest games and technology to be displayed so that
the Washington market remains vibrant and strong and operators, and ultimately players, have as
many choices as possible to select from. As evidenced by trade shows in gaming markets around the
world, there is no downside to allowing this, and regulatory safeguards in Washington and all
gaming markets ensure unapproved software, slots, tables or other technology will never make it to
the live gaming floor. Thank you for your consideration and we look forward to working with you
on this effort going forward.”
 
MARCUS PRATER
Executive Director
Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM)
E-mail - AGEM.org@cox.net
Phone - (702) 812-6932
Web - www.AGEM.org
 
From: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) [mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Friday, December 21, 2018 2:46 PM
To: 'Marcus Prater'
Subject: RE: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
 
They will.
 

From: Marcus Prater <agem.org@cox.net> 
Sent: Friday, December 21, 2018 2:45 PM
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) <ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: RE: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
 
Thank you for this update. Will the comments submitted via email in advance of the meeting be
entered into the record as part of the public comment process? In other words, if we don’t have
someone there in person, will our comments count along with those there in person? Thanks
 
MARCUS PRATER
Executive Director
Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM)
E-mail - AGEM.org@cox.net
Phone - (702) 812-6932
Web - www.AGEM.org
 
From: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) [mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Friday, December 21, 2018 2:05 PM

mailto:agem.org@cox.net
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:AGEM.org@cox.net
http://www.agem.org/
mailto:AGEM.org@cox.net
http://www.agem.org/
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov


To: 'Little, Dan'; 'agem.org@cox.net'; 'rebecca@washingtonindiangaming.org'
Cc: Considine, Brian (GMB)
Subject: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
 
Good afternoon,
 
I wanted to let you know that we’ll be discussing the need for clarification of  WAC 230-16-005-
Transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment at trade shows and conventions- at the
January Commission Meeting. You are welcome to attend (details below). There will be an
opportunity for public comment. If you’d like to submit materials to the Commission for their

consideration, please email them to me by January 2nd. Please feel free to pass this information on
to those on the call last month.
 
January Commission Meeting
 
Date:                     January 10, 2019 @ 9am PST
Location:              Hampton Inn & Suites

4301 Martin Way E.
Olympia, WA 98516

 
Please contact me if you have any questions. Thank you and have a great holiday!
 
Ashlie Laydon
Rules Coordinator
Legal and Records Division
Washington State Gambling Commission
(360) 486-3473
ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-16-005
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov




From: Lance Ledford
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB)
Subject: Notice of Rule Making Tradeshows
Date: Tuesday, January 22, 2019 1:53:22 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Notice of Rulemaking; Tradeshows.pdf

Good Afternoon,
The Tulalip Gaming Agency supports the Washington State Gambling Commission’s efforts to update
its rules to clarify and allow manufacturers and/or suppliers to showcase Class III gaming equipment
or product at a user conference or tradeshow location prior to that manufacturer or supplier having
to obtain approval through the standard WSGC EGL testing and approval process. In lieu, we may
support a limited scope authorization from WSGC for the specific purpose of gambling equipment
being exhibited or demonstrated at a user conference or trade show. It is well established and
understood in the Washington state gambling jurisdiction that before gaming equipment can be
offered for play on a live, production system; it must go through an independent testing lab, such as
GLI or BMM, as well as the WSGC EGL for its approval. Requiring a manufacturer or supplier to go
through the approval process prior to knowing whether there is an appetite for a particular game or
product can be a time consuming and expensive effort.
Please let me know if you have any questions or if we can be of any assistance.
Thanks,
Lance Ledford
Director | Tulalip Gaming Agency
Email | lledford@tulaliptga.org
Desk | 360.716.2011

“Regulation and Service with Integrity”

mailto:lledford@tulaliptga.org
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:lledford@tulaliptga.org

TULAi?iP

GAMING RAGENCY






P.O. Box 42400 • Olympia, Washington 98504-2400 • (360) 486-3440 • TDD (360) 486-3637 • FAX (360) 486-3625 
 


 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 


GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 


 
January 16, 2019 


NOTICE OF RULE MAKING 


On January 10, 2019, the Commissioners voted to initiate rulemaking at the request of staff to 
clarify what types of gambling equipment can be displayed at tradeshows. 


Our next step is to meet with stakeholders to discuss the timeline for making possible changes to 
the Commission’s trade show rule. Our first meeting will be at 9:00am PST on January 24, 2019, 
at the Washington State Gambling Commission, 4565 7th Ave SE, Lacey, WA 98503. You are 
also welcome to participate by phone, please call (360) 407-3780, and dial 671925#. 


Once we have draft rules, the rules will be presented to the Commissioners for their review and 
consideration. You can follow the rules process each month by reviewing the Complete 
Commission Packets that are posted a week prior to the monthly meeting under the Public 
Meetings section of our website, www.wsgc.wa.gov.  


You can provide feedback by calling me, sending me a letter or email, by providing public 
comment to the Commissioners at a commission meeting, or providing comment through our 
agency website. 


If you have any questions about this petition or the process, please feel free to contact me at 
(360) 486-3473 or at Ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov.  


Sincerely,  


 


Ashlie Laydon  
Rules Coordinator 
Legal and Records Division 



http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/

mailto:Ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov



		“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”









 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
April 29, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Vincent Johnson, CR 2018-01448 
  Final Order – May 9, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Vincent Johnson had a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity at 
Wizards Casino in Kent, Washington.  His license expired on April 11, 2019.   
 
On September 11, 2018, Mr. Johnson was working as a security officer at Wizards Casino and 
came into contact with an intoxicated patron needing assistance. While assisting the patron, Mr. 
Johnson took her money and wallet.  
 
Director Trujillo issued Mr. Johnson a Notice of Administrative Charges on January 29, 2019, by 
regular and certified mail to his last known address on file. Receipt of delivery of certified mail 
was received on February 7, 2019. The Commission received a Request for Hearing on February 
19, 2019. A prehearing conference was scheduled for April 10, 2019. Mr. Johnson failed to appear.  
 
Mr. Johnson’s failure to appear at the prehearing conference is a waiver of Mr. Johnson’s right to 
a hearing in Case No. CR 2018-01448. You may take final action against his gambling license. 
Based on his conduct, Mr. Johnson cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that he is 
qualified to keep his gambling license. Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign the 
proposed final order and revoke Vincent Johnson’s Public Card Room Employee license, Number 
68-34143. 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
April 29, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Panya Praseuth, CR 2018-01546 
  Final Order – May 9, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Ms. Panya Praseuth has a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity at 
Fortune Poker in Renton, Washington.  Her license expires on June 5, 2019.   
 
On September 5, 2018, the Washington State Gambling Commission was notified by Fortune 
Poker management that a poker dealer had been stealing poker chips off the table. Our 
investigation and video surveillance shows that Ms. Praseuth stole approximately $675 between 
August 24, 2018 and September 6, 2018. When confronted, Ms. Praseuth admitted to Commission 
special agents that she had been taking money from the pot for at least three months and estimated 
she probably took $1,200. Ms. Praseuth’s employment was terminated on September 11, 2018. 
 
Director Trujillo issued Ms. Praseuth a Notice of Administrative Charges on March 19, 2019, by 
regular and certified mail to her last known address on file. Pursuant to WAC 230-17-010, a 
response was required to be received by the Commission by April 11, 2019. No response was 
received. 
 
Ms. Praseuth’s failure to respond to the charges or timely request a hearing is a waiver of Ms. 
Praseuth’s right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2018-01546. You may take final action against her 
gambling license. Based on her conduct, Ms. Praseuth cannot show by clear and convincing 
evidence that she is qualified to keep her gambling license. Therefore, staff recommends that the 
Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Panya Praseuth’s Public Card Room 
Employee license, Number 68-14169. 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
April 29, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Marcus A Shin, CR 2019-00267 
  Final Order – May 9, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Marcus A Shin has a certification authorizing Class III Employee activity at the Red Winds 
Casino in Olympia, Washington.  His certification expires on July 13, 2019.   
 
The Nisqually Tribal Gaming Agency conducted an investigation in September 2018 regarding its 
player tracking system.  It discovered that Mr. Shin conspired with his brother to defrauding the 
casino by giving player points to players not at the casino and then cashing out unearned points. 
Video surveillance between September 24, 2018 and October 3, 2018, shows that Mr. Shin’s player 
tracking scheme allowed him to unlawfully take $55,193.00 from the casino. Subsequently, Mr. 
Shin’s employment was terminated on October 5, 2018. 
 
Director Trujillo issued Mr. Shin a Notice of Administrative Charges on March 22, 2019, by 
regular and certified mail to his last known address on file. Pursuant to WAC 230-17-010, a 
response was required to be received by the Commission by April 15, 2019. No response was 
received.  
 
Mr. Shin’s failure to respond to the charges or timely request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. Shin’s 
right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2019-00267. You may take final action against his gambling 
certification.  Based on his conduct, Mr. Shin cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that 
he is qualified to keep his certification.  Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign 
the proposed final order and revoke Marcus A. Shin’s Class III Employee certification, Number 
69-27740. 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
May 2, 2019 
 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Representative Derek Stanford 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer 
   Alicia Levy     
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
   Chris Stanley, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUBJECT:  LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
 
Legislative session ended on April 28, 2019. Below is a summary of noteworthy bills that we have been 
tracking, including our agency request bills and bills we are supporting. 
 
Agency Request Legislation 
 

1. SHB 1302, Gambling Self Exclusion (attached) 
SHB 1302 was passed out of the Senate 48-0-1 on April 17, 2019.  It was delivered to the 
Governor on April 26, 2019 and Governor Inslee signed the bill on April 30, 2019. The bill will 
become law on July 27, 2019. 

 
Bills Supported by the Commission 
 

2. HB 1880, Creating a joint legislative task force on problem gambling 
ESHB 1880 was not passed by the Legislature and died on the Senate’s Second Reading 
Calendar.  However, the Task Force structure and an appropriation is in the operating budget, 
HB 1109, Section 729 (attached). 
 

3. HB 1919, Preventing and responding to animal abuse & HB 1929, Restricting animal 
fighting paraphernalia (attached) 
SHB 1919 was passed by the Senate 44-2-3 on March 29, 2019 and the House unanimously 
concurred with the Senate amendments on April 18, 2019. The bill was delivered to the 
Governor for his signature on April 29, 2019.  This bill will become law on July 27, 2019. 
 

4. HB 1356, Concerning privileged communication with peer support group counselors 
SHB 1356 passed out of the Senate 47-0-2 on April 11, 2019 and the Governor signed the bill on 
April 23, 2019.  The bill will become law on July 27, 2019. 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
May 2, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
Bills Supported by the Commission (cont.) 
 

5. HB 1064, Concerning law enforcement 
Representative Goodman’s HB 1064 is an amendment to I-940.  The bill was passed by the 
Legislature, signed by the Governor, and became effective on February 4, 2019. 
 

6. HB 1159, Changing the definition of theft 
HB 1159 did not make it out of the House and is dead for this session. 
 

Bills with Direct Gambling Industry Impacts 
 

7. HB 1343 and SB 5129, Increasing revenues for the support of state government 
These are OFM request bills that impose a capital gains tax and increase business and occupation 
(B&O) tax rate from 1.5 percent to 2.5 percent for games of chance. See budget discussion 
below.  Neither was passed this session. 
 

Law Enforcement Bills 
 

8. HB 1253, Concerning the timeline for commencing basic law enforcement training 
HB 1253 did not make it out of the House Appropriations Committee and is dead for this 
session. However, the Legislature provided the CJTC new funding for nine additional statewide 
basic law enforcement trainings in each fiscal year of this biennium.  

 
Operating Budget 
 

9. HB 1109, operating appropriations 
The Legislature passed the operating budget.  In addition to items discussed above, HB 1302 
appropriation was included in the Lottery’s and our budgets.  Additionally, we were approved to 
move forward with a feasibility study to replace our main business database and case system. 

 
Public Records Act and State Government Bills 
 

10. HB 1537, Sunshine committee recommendations; and HB 1667, Concerning public records 
request administration 
HB 1537 unanimously passed out of the Senate on April 15, 2019. HB 1667 was passed by the 
Senate on April 25, 2019 and the House concurred on April 26, 2019. 
 

11. HB 1071, Protecting personal information and SB 5662, Cloud computing solutions 
SHB 1071 was unanimously passed by the Senate on April 15, 2019 and the House concurred 
with amendments on April 22, 2019.  E2SSB 5662 died in the House Appropriations Committee. 
 

Looking Towards 2020 Session 
 

12. We will discuss our process for setting our 2020 legislative priorities.  However, I do expect 
sports gambling, social online casinos, and possibly loot boxes and nonprofit activities to be 
discussed next session. 

 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Representative Derek Stanford 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer      
   Alicia Levy 
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
   Tyson Wilson, Special Agent 
 
SUBJECT:  Sports Gambling Update – May 2019 
 
This memo continues my sports gambling updates first submitted to you in June 2018. Below is 
an updated sports gambling summary for our May 9-10, 2019 Commission Meeting:   

Federal 

There are no new updates since my last memo. 

Sports Leagues 

Professional sports leagues continue to lobby state legislators for integrity or royalty fees and 
control over the sharing of their statistics and data.  Integrity/royalty fees and data rights are not 
included in any current operating states or bills recently passed by state legislatures. 

In February, Major League Baseball asked the Nevada Gaming Control Board, the New Jersey 
Division of Gaming Enforcement, and the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board to prohibit 
wagering on spring training baseball games due to “heightened integrity concerns.” Nevada and 
New Jersey declined MLB’s request.  Pennsylvania granted the request. 

MLB also announced prior to the beginning of its season that, per its official partner agreement 
with MGM, MLB team managers must submit their daily lineups to MLB headquarters prior to 
releasing them publicly.  The information will be released through their official data feed prior to 
going public. MLB will also hold back umpire assignments until its release through its official 
data feed. 

States 

Delaware, Mississippi, New Jersey, Nevada, West Virginia, Rhode Island and Pennsylvania 
currently offer varying opportunities for state-regulated sports gambling, including land-based 
and online offerings.   



Sports Gambling Update to Commissioners 
May 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
States (continued) 

New York and Connecticut have partial laws in place.  The New York Gaming Commission 
issued draft sports gambling regulations for its land-based commercial casinos and it will likely 
finalize those rules in the next few weeks.  Once finalized, commercial and Tribal operators will 
likely be able to start their sports gambling operations. 

Arkansas and Washington D.C. legalized sports betting and are in the process of preparing for it 
to be offered in the upcoming year.  Iowa and Montana’s Legislatures recently passed bills now 
awaiting their Governor’s signature.  

In total, 28 states have introduced legislation this year to authorize sports betting.  Currently, 
Indiana, Iowa, New Hampshire, and Maine appear most likely to be the next states to authorize 
sports gambling.  Additionally, Arizona, Minnesota, and North Carolina are each considering 
bills that would only authorize sports gambling at tribal facilities. 

Here is an update for the states where sports gambling is currently legal:  
 

Delaware – Sports gambling started in the state on June 5, 2018.  The state Lottery is 
the primary regulator.  Sports gambling is only offered at three land-based racetracks 
and casinos, and these are joint operations by the state through a vendor.  The 
allocation of net revenues are 12.5% to the vendors (Scientific Games, William Hill, 
and StadiumTech) and the remaining 87.5% of net revenues are allocated 50% to the 
state, 40% to the racetrack/casinos, and 10% to horse racing purses.  In March, $10.4 
million was wagered and there was $1.6 million in net proceeds.  There was $822,000 
to the state. 

 
New Jersey – Sports gambling started in the state on June 14, 2018.  The Casino 
Control Commission is the primary licensing authority and Attorney General’s 
Division of Gaming Enforcement (DGE) is the primary regulator.  There are currently 
10 land-based and 13 online operators offering sports gambling. Its land-based gross 
revenues are taxed at 9.75% and mobile and online revenues are taxed at 13%.  In 
March, $298.3 million was wagered resulting in $52.6 million in gross revenue.  
There was $3.18 million in tax revenue. 
 
Mississippi – Sports gambling started in the state on August 1, 2018.  The Gaming 
Commission is the primary regulator, and gross revenues are taxed at 12%. 23 of the 
28 state casinos currently offered sports gambling. In March, $32.4 million was 
wagered resulting is $4.9 million in gross revenue.  There was $588,000 in tax 
revenue. 
 
West Virginia – Sports gambling started in the state on September 1, 2018.  The state 
Lottery is the primary regulator for that state’s five licensed race racetrack/casinos, 
and gross revenues are taxed at 10%.  In March, $17.6 million was wagered resulting 
in $2.3 million in gross revenue.  There was $234,139 in tax revenue. 

 
 
 



Sports Gambling Update to Commissioners 
May 2019 
Page 3 
 
 
States (continued) 

Rhode Island – Sports gambling started in the state on November 26, 2018.  The state 
lottery operates sports betting at two state-run operations using IGT and William Hill 
as vendors.  The allocation of net revenues are 51% to the state; 32% to the Vendor 
(IGT); and 17% to the casino. In March, $23.5 million was wagered resulting in $1.5 
million in gross revenue. Interestingly, there was a total loss of approximately, 
$891,000 for February due to the Patriots winning the Super Bowl. 
 
Pennsylvania – Sports gambling started in the state in December 2018. The state 
gaming control board is the primary regulator. Currently, there are 8 casino locations 
with online operators forthcoming later this year. Pennsylvania has a $10 million 
sports wagering licensing fee and gross revenue are taxed at 36%. In March, there 
was approximately $44.5 million wagered for approximately $25.5 million in gross 
revenue.  There was $1.87 million in tax revenue. 
 
Nevada – The Gaming Control Board is the primary regulator. Gross revenues are 
taxed at 6.75% and sports gambling can occur at the state’s approximately 190 
licensed locations and through mobile and internet platforms. In March, there was 
approximately, $596.8 million wagered resulting in $32.5 million in gross 
revenue. There was $2.19 million in tax revenue. 
 
Oregon – The Oregon Lottery is the primary regulator.  The state lottery announced 
last month that it selected SB Tech is their sports betting technology supplier over 
Scientific Games and Playtech. It appears the state lottery plans to offer sports 
gambling through online/mobile and kiosks at retail locations starting by Fall 2019 to 
take advantage of the 2019 NFL season.   
 
 

Tribal Governments 

Currently, there are three Tribes outside of Nevada offering sports gambling at their operations–
Choctaw in Mississippi and Pueblo of Santa Ana and Pueblo of Pojoaque in New Mexico.   

Additionally, the Pueblo of Isleta in New Mexico announced last month they will open a sports 
gambling operation soon and the Oneida Indian Nation announced intentions to partner with 
MGM to have sports gambling operations at three of its facilities. 

Commercial Operators 

A West Virginia casino operator with two facilities and a mobile app is in litigation with its 
sports gambling supplier, Miomni, after the operator had to shut down its sports gambling 
operations allegedly due to Miomni’s inability to perform its obligation under the contract. The 
operator has been unable to offer sports gambling since February 2019 due to this issue. 

Las Vegas operator SuperBook USA has announced it will enter the New Jersey market in the 
near future. 


	Agenda
	Tab 1 April Meeting Minutes
	Tab 1 Licenses Report
	Tab 2 Budget Report
	Tab 3 Petition for Poker
	Tab 4 Service Supplier/Distributor License Rules
	Tab 5 Card Shuffler
	Tab 6 Trade Show Rules
	Tab 7 Defaults
	Tab 8 Legislative Update
	Tab 9 Sports Gambling Update 
	May Agenda.pdf
	GAMBLING COMMISSION
	Thursday, May 9, 2019


	May Agenda.pdf
	GAMBLING COMMISSION
	Thursday, May 9, 2019





